
 Regular Meeting AGENDA, August 20, 2025 | Page 1 of 2 
 

NEWTON FALLS CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Wednesday, August 20, 2025; 6:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
612 WEST BROAD STREET 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS  CITY ADMINISTRATION 
     
Ward 1 Patricia Benetis  Interim City Manager Jamie Vernaccini 
Ward 2 Brian Axiotis  Law Director Jeff Limbian 
Ward 3 Robert Burke  Finance Director Jamie Vernaccini 
Ward 4 Kevin Rufener  Clerk of Council Michael Acomb 
At- Large Julie Stimpert  Police Chief John Barco 
Mayor David Hanson    

 
I. Call to Order 

II. Pledge of Allegiance / Silent Prayer 
III. Roll Call 
IV. Changes To Tonight’s Agenda 
V. Special Presentations by Staff Members or Invited Consultants 

VI. Public Comments (Agenda Items Only) 
VII. Reports 

a. Mayor 
b. Council Members 
c. Law Director 
d. Finance Director 
e. Police Chief 
f. City Manager 

VIII. Approval of Previous Minutes 
Regular Meeting Minutes August 6, 2025 

IX. Public Hearings 
ORDINANCE 2025-41           Sponsors: Benetis, Stimpert 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES RELATED TO THE 
TRAFFIC CODE AND ESTABLISHING CHAPTER 377 OF THE TRAFFIC CODE 
REGULATING UNDER-SPEED, LOW-SPEED AND UTILITY VEHICLES 
 

X. Unfinished Business 
ORDINANCE 2025-41           Sponsors: Benetis, Stimpert 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES RELATED TO THE 
TRAFFIC CODE AND ESTABLISHING CHAPTER 377 OF THE TRAFFIC CODE 
REGULATING UNDER-SPEED, LOW-SPEED AND UTILITY VEHICLES 
 
 
 
 
 



 Regular Meeting AGENDA, August 20, 2025 | Page 2 of 2 
 

XI. New Business 

Motion        Sponsors: Benetis, Stimpert 
A Motion to appoint Julie Lemon to the open seat on the Planning and Zoning 
Commission for the term ending on December 31, 2027. 
 
ORDINANCE 2025-43    Sponsors: Axiotis, Stimpert 
AN ORDINANCE RESOLVING ALL POTENTIAL LEGAL CLAIMS AGAINST THE 
VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO BY A. JOSEPH FRITZ PURSUANT TO THE 
EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT WHICH INCLUDED AN OUTSTANDING SEVERANCE 
PROVISION 

XII. Public Comments  
XIII. Closing Remarks 

a. Mayor 
b. Council Members 
c. Law Director 
d. Finance Director 
e. City Manager 

XIV. Motion to Recess into Executive Session (If Necessary) 
XV. Adjournment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 Regular Meeting MINUTES, August 6, 2025 | Page 1 of 7 
 

NEWTON FALLS CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, August 6, 2025; 6:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
612 WEST BROAD STREET 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS  CITY ADMINISTRATION 
     
Ward 1 Patricia Benetis  Interim City Manager Jamie Vernaccini 
Ward 2 Brian Axiotis  Law Director Jeff Limbian 
Ward 3 Robert Burke  Finance Director Jamie Vernaccini 
Ward 4 Kevin Rufener  Clerk of Council Michael Acomb 
At- Large Julie Stimpert  Police Chief John Barco 
Mayor David Hanson    

 
 

I. Call to Order 
Mayor Hanson called the meeting to order at 6:03 pm. 

II. Pledge of Allegiance / Silent Prayer 
III. Roll Call 

Mayor Hanson asked Mr. Acomb to call the roll. 
Council Present: Councilperson Axiotis, Councilperson Benetis, Councilperson Stimpert, 
Councilperson Rufener, Councilperson Burke, Mayor Hanson. 
Council Absent: None. 
Staff Present: Interim City Manager/Finance Director Vernaccini, Law Director Limbian, 
Clerk Acomb. 
Staff Absent: None. 

IV. Changes To Tonight’s Agenda 
None 

V. Special Presentations by Staff Members or Invited Consultants 
PROCLAMATION 
A Proclamation to recognize and honor the “Breaking Ballers” 2025 Ohio Hot Stove 
Baseball League EE State Champions 

Mayor Hanson read the proclamation and Council presented copies to the 
honorees in attendance. 

 
PROCLAMATION 
Commemorating the Listing of the Newton Falls Downtown Historic District on the 
National Register of Historic Places and Recognizing the Contributions of Connie Talcott 
and Tom Colosimo 

Mayor Hanson read the proclamation and Council presented copies to the 
honorees in attendance. 

VI. Public Comments (Agenda Items Only) 

Julie Lemon – 609 Ridge Road 
She congratulated the baseball team for their championship. She congratulated Tom and 
Connie for the historic designation. She spoke against ordinance 2025-33 being 



 

 Regular Meeting MINUTES, August 6, 2025 | Page 2 of 7 
 

presented as an emergency and then tabled. Why is it not on this agenda? She spoke in 
support of Chief Barco and she spoke against Blue Line Solutions requesting more 
information. She encouraged Council, if passed, to demand an SOC Type 1 and SOC Type 
2 report to ensure the proper internal controls for the devices.  Enclosed. 

 
 John Baryak 

He spoke is support of control of golf carts. He spoke against speed cameras citing 
concerns about the need for the village to put money in escrow for potential lawsuits. He 
stated that Girard told him that people stop going to towns where these cameras are 
located. He’s for the police department, but against cameras. He encouraged 
transparency. 
 
Jim Luonuoso – 10 East Liberty 
He supports the PD and the Chief. He spoke against speed cameras. The citizens firmly 
do not want them as was made clear by the overwhelming negative response. He asked if 
the law director reviewed this ordinance for legality and form. He stated the ordinance 
contains double-talk. He supports Mr. Axiotis’ comments from the previous meeting. 
Section 3B states clearly that the Chief can use cameras anywhere he wants. 
 
Brian Kropp – 247 Elizabeth Street 
He spoke about speed cameras. There has been no police presence recently and Blue 
Line did a study during that time. The lack of presence skews the data. He wants to know 
why do the cameras and assign someone to review all the cases, when you could just put 
an officer in the school zone. He encouraged other methods of raising money and spoke 
against this ordinance being about safety, when it seems to be about money. Put officers 
in the community and pull people over. He wants a speed study conducted with patrols 
stationed in the school zone. He asked Council reconsider. 
 
Adam Zimmermann – 515 Lemae 
He spoke in support of speed cameras. He thanked the Chief for his efforts to build a 
revenue stream that is paid by the offenders. He spoke from experience that the cameras 
work. He believes it is necessary until we can afford more full-time officers. He spoke in 
support of a DORA and believes that speed cameras will help make it safer.  

VII. Reports 
a. Mayor – The Mayor asked to revisit speed cameras. He stated concern that the 

sidewalks have been breached by vehicles twice recently due to the speed of the 
vehicles involved. He spoke against taxes. He spoke in support of slowing people 
down and using speed cameras to do it. 

b. Council Members 
i. Ward 1 – She read from a prepared statement (enclosed). 

ii. Ward 2 – He spoke against Mayor Hanson’s comments about taxes. He 
spoke against speed cameras and in support of an additional tax of some 
kind for the police department. The Planning and Zoning Meeting 
yesterday went well and he is looking forward to having a secretary for the 
Planning and Zoning Commission. 

iii. Ward 3 – He is pleased with the efforts of the Parks and Recreation Board 
and working to improve things. 

iv. Ward 4 – He thanked every person and agency that participated in the 
recent National Night Out event.  

v. At-Large – She attended the National Night Out and said it was great! The 
Fire Board meeting is August 19. She will ask Parks and Recreation to get 
a banner for the baseball champs.  



 

 Regular Meeting MINUTES, August 6, 2025 | Page 3 of 7 
 

c. Law Director – No report. 
d. Finance Director - She read a prepared report. Enclosed. 
e. City Manager - She read a prepared report. Enclosed.  
f. Police Chief – He read a prepared report. Enclosed. 

VIII. Approval of Previous Minutes 
Mayor Hanson asked for a motion to approve the Regular Meeting Minutes July 23, 
2025. Mr. Rufener made a motion to approve the meeting minutes on the agenda 
together. Second by Ms. Stimpert.  

No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Mr. Burke-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0. 
 
Mayor Hanson asked for a motion to approve the Regular Meeting Minutes July 23, 
2025 and the Special Meeting Minutes July 24, 2025. Moved by Ms. Stimpert. Second by 
Mr. Rufener. 

No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Mr. Burke-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0. The minutes were approved. 
 

IX. Public Hearings 
ORDINANCE 2025-34 (amended)      Sponsors: Rufener, Benetis 
AN ORDINANCE CREATING THE POSITION OF ELECTRIC FOREMAN IN THE 
NEWTON FALLS ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT AND ESTABLISHING A RATE OF PAY 
No public comments. 
  
ORDINANCE 2025-36                 Sponsors: Rufener, Stimpert, Axiotis, Benetis 
AN ORDINANCE DECLARING A CERTAIN VEHICLE AND OTHER EQUIPMENT 
OBSOLETE AND NO LONGER USABLE TO THE VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS AND 
TO DISPOSE OF VEHICLES AS SET FORTH HEREIN 
No public comments. 
 
ORDINANCE 2025-37            Sponsors: Axiotis, Rufener 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING CERTAIN AMENDMENTS TO THE 
APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2025 AND 
AUTHORIZING THE FINANCE DIRECTOR TO AMEND AND FILE A CERTIFICATE 
OF RESOURCES WITH THE COUNTY AUDITOR 
No public comments. 
 
ORDINANCE 2025-40           Sponsors: Rufener, Benetis 
AN ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE FOR AND AUTHORIZE PHOTO TRAFFIC 
ENFORCEMENT WITHIN THE VILLAGE 
Adam Zimmermann – 515 Lemae  
He supports a levy for the police department if needed. He supports levies for fire and 
schools, also. He spoke in support of speed cameras. 
 
Jim Luonuansuu – 10 E. Liberty Street 
He spoke against speed cameras. He does not want officers on SR 5. He wants them in 
the neighborhoods. 
 
 



 

 Regular Meeting MINUTES, August 6, 2025 | Page 4 of 7 
 

John Baryak 
He spoke against speed cameras because they are not sustainable. He supports having 
officers that can run a speed gun. 
 
Julie Lemon – 609 Ridge Road 
She spoke in support of a police officer stationed in the school zone. She recognizes a 
small police force, so she spoke in support of the speed cameras for a 6-month trial 
period. She stated that the ordinance should be tabled to remove the exhibit. 
 

X. Unfinished Business 
ORDINANCE 2025-34 (amended)       Sponsors: Rufener, Benetis 
AN ORDINANCE CREATING THE POSITION OF ELECTRIC FOREMAN IN THE 
NEWTON FALLS ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT AND ESTABLISHING A RATE OF PAY 
Mayor Hanson read the ordinance by title only and asked for a motion to adopt the 
ordinance. Moved by Ms. Stimpert. Second by Ms. Benetis. 

No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Mr. Burke-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The ordinance passed 5-0. Final Reading. 
 
ORDINANCE 2025-36                 Sponsors: Rufener, Stimpert, Axiotis, Benetis 
AN ORDINANCE DECLARING A CERTAIN VEHICLE AND OTHER EQUIPMENT 
OBSOLETE AND NO LONGER USABLE TO THE VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS AND 
TO DISPOSE OF VEHICLES AS SET FORTH HEREIN 
Mayor Hanson read the ordinance by title only and asked for a motion to adopt the 
ordinance. Moved by Ms. Benetis. Second by Mr. Rufener. 

No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Mr. Burke-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The ordinance passed 5-0. Final Reading. 
 
ORDINANCE 2025-37            Sponsors: Axiotis, Rufener 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING CERTAIN AMENDMENTS TO THE 
APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2025 AND 
AUTHORIZING THE FINANCE DIRECTOR TO AMEND AND FILE A CERTIFICATE 
OF RESOURCES WITH THE COUNTY AUDITOR 
Mayor Hanson read the ordinance by title only and asked for a motion to adopt the 
ordinance. Moved by Mr. Rufener. Second by Ms. Benetis. 

No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Mr. Burke-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The ordinance passed 5-0. Final Reading. 
 
ORDINANCE 2025-40           Sponsors: Rufener, Benetis 
AN ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE FOR AND AUTHORIZE PHOTO TRAFFIC 
ENFORCEMENT WITHIN THE VILLAGE 
Mayor Hanson read the ordinance by title only and asked for a motion to adopt the 
ordinance. Moved by Mr. Rufener. Second by Ms. Benetis. 
 Mr. Axiotis spoke about the Exhibit and whether or not it should be included. Mr. 
Rufener expressed concerns. He acknowledged that Mr. Limbian stated believe it is for 
school zones only. He made a motion to table the ordinance for revision. No second. Mr. 
Rufener stated belief that the cart is before the horse. He agrees with Mr. Axiotis’ 
statements about the Exhibit. He stated that the process has to be followed. First, 



 

 Regular Meeting MINUTES, August 6, 2025 | Page 5 of 7 
 

Council must support the program. Then, the designated person develops a draft of the 
contract for Council’s consideration. He stated that the attachment was supposed to 
come as an example of what the contract could be, which is why it doesn’t make sense. 
The contract has not been created per se. He made a motion to amend section 1 and 
remove “as outlined in Exhibit A” and remove the Exhibit A in its entirety from the 
packet. Second by Ms. Stimpert.  

Mr. Rufener stated intent is to clean up the ordinance and simply authorize 
support for the program. This ordinance will only provide support for speed 
cameras without a contract until one can be developed.  

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Mr. Burke-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion to amend passed 5-0. The ordinance was amended. 

 Mr. Rufener made a motion to pass the ordinance as amended. Second by Ms. Stimpert. 

Mr. Axiotis expressed support for speed cameras in speed zones. He does not 
support them as a cash grab. Mr. Rufener spoke in support of the speed cameras 
because the goal is to slow people down and provide safety. Ms. Stimpert spoke in 
support of speed cameras. If you don’t speed, you won’t be asked to pay anything. 

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Mr. Burke-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The ordinance passed 5-0. Final Reading. 
 
Mr. Acomb asked Mr. Limbian if the amendment warranted another reading at the next 
regular meeting of Council and Mr. Limbian stated that the ordinance does not require 
another reading.  
 

XI. New Business 
RESOLUTION 10-2025           Sponsors: Benetis, Stimpert 
A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS 
TO PARTICIPATE IN THE PURDUE DIRECT SETTLEMENT PURSUANT TO THE 
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY & SHAREHOLDER DIRECT SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 
AND THE NATIONAL OPIOIDS SETTLEMENT FRAMEWORK 
Mayor Hanson read the ordinance by title only and asked for a motion to adopt the 
ordinance. Moved by Ms. Benetis. Second by Mr. Rufener. 

Mr. Rufener stated that this is a new judgment in which a settlement is being 
paid, and Council wishes to receive whatever portion of that settlement is given to 
the Village. 

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Mr. Burke-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The resolution passed 5-0.  
 
ORDINANCE 2025-41           Sponsors: Benetis, Stimpert 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES RELATED TO THE 
TRAFFIC CODE AND ESTABLISHING CHAPTER 377 OF THE TRAFFIC CODE 
REGULATING UNDER-SPEED, LOW-SPEED AND UTILITY VEHICLES 
Mayor Hanson read the ordinance by title only and asked for a motion to adopt the 
ordinance. Moved by Ms. Stimpert. Second by Mr. Rufener. 

Ms. Stimpert spoke in support of the ordinance to clarify the rules. She believes 
the Chief supports it and it should be adopted. 

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Mr. Burke-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The ordinance passed 5-0. First Reading. 

XII. Public Comments  



 

 Regular Meeting MINUTES, August 6, 2025 | Page 6 of 7 
 

John Baryak 
He asked Council if an oath was taken to do their best for the Village. He spoke about the 
annexation of Dunkin Donuts and the need to enforce the payment of taxes due to the 
annexation which is not being collected at this point. He spoke against Council’s inaction 
in this matter. An application needs to be submitted. He urged Council to make it 
happen. 
 
Laura Nieheisel 
She read from a prepared statement speaking against the speed cameras. She asked for 
information and regulations regarding scooters and electric bikes. 
 
Jim Luonuansuu 
He spoke against the speed camera ordinance. He stated that it should have been a 
resolution and is not legal due to a significant change in the ordinance that occurred with 
the ordinance was amended tonight on the floor which requires it to go back to a first 
reading. 
 
Brian Kropp 
He spoke against speed cameras due to the need for more staff to review the cases. There 
are no requirements to pay the tickets. How is the Village making money? This is only a 
cash grab. He would rather see a patrol stationed in the zone. He was disappointed that 
the tabled ordinance regarding the Clerk’s amended work agreement was not on the 
agenda. He stated further that Council reports are supposed to be about what you’ve 
done for the Village and your ward. 
 
Julie Lemon 
She stated support for the police and how they handle calls. She spoke against the tabled 
Ordinance 2025-33. She offered her services to the PZ for free and was denied. She 
spoke against the back biting. She spoke against residents chastising Council during 
public comments. She appreciates Council’s efforts. 

 

XIII. Closing Remarks 
a. Mayor – He spoke about trying to do the right thing. He spoke in support of the 

speed cameras as a necessary evil, despite his not wanting them either.  
b. Council Members 

i. Ward 1 – No remarks. 
ii. Ward 2 – He stated that his campaign was based on bringing back the 

police department. It is back and on a shoestring budget. There are many 
ideas for funding, including tax increases which are hard to achieve. He 
believes they are trying to build trust. Suddenly speed cameras came out 
of nowhere as an easy quick solution. The hard work is the right work. Ask 
the people to increase their taxes rather than enforcing the will of Council 
to have speed cameras. 

iii. Ward 3 – He spoke about a national program, Cops for Kids. He would 
like to see it come to town. He spoke in support of speed cameras. 

iv. Ward 4 – He stated that he regularly gets phone calls in support of speed 
cameras. There is a lot of misinformation out there. No citation = no cost. 
No startup costs. The company gets 25% of the fines to the offenders. If 
you don’t pay it, then late fees and civil litigation can be brought against 
you, and your driver’s license likely won’t get renewed. An officer does not 
have to be sitting at the camera. Read the law and learn the truth. 



 

 Regular Meeting MINUTES, August 6, 2025 | Page 7 of 7 
 

v. At-Large – Ms. Stimpert stated that many options for PD funding have 
been discussed. She urged Mr. Axiotis to bring alternative legislation to 
Council.  

c. Law Director – No remarks. 
d. Finance Director – No remarks. 
e. City Manager – No remarks. 
f. Police Chief – No remarks. 

XIV. Motion to Recess into Executive Session (If Necessary) 
Ms. Stimpert made a motion to enter an executive session to discuss personnel matters 
related to the employment and compensation of a public official and pending litigation 
matters whereas Council may or may not act afterwards. Second by Mr. Rufener. 

No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Mr. Burke-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0. The Council entered the executive session at 7:58 
pm.  
 
Ms. Stimpert made a motion to exit the executive session and resume regular session. 
Second by Mr. Rufener. 
 No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Mr. Burke-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0. The Council resumed regular session at 9:31 pm.  

XV. Adjournment 
Ms. Stimpert made a motion to adjourn the regular meeting. Second by Mr. Burke. 

No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Mr. Burke-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0. The meeting was adjourned at 9:31 pm.  
 
 

APPROVED:            
        _________________________________________ 
                                            David Hanson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________________________________ 
Michael Acomb, Clerk of Council 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Interim City Manager and Finance Director Report

T o :

A  F R A U

Members of Council

David Hanson, Mayor
Jeff Limbian, Law Director

Mike Acomb, City Clerk

Jamie Vernaccini, Director of Finance & Interim City Manager
July 6, 2025
City Manager and Finan

F r o m :

D a t e :

S u b j e c t :

Air Conditioning:

The air conditioning is not working for part of this building. Upon inspection by a HVAC technician, the
compressor is old and needs a replacement. I've included a quote in your information tonight. I've also
included preventative maintenance for the HVAC system throughout the building. No one has completed
any maintenance for the last 4.5 years. As a general update, this building has 8 separate furnaces and
air conditioning compressors. All of the air conditioning compressors are at least 20 years old and each
will need replaced in the coming years. The preventative maintenance is to assess where each unit is
hearing and cooling and what absolutely needs cleaned and replaced moving forward. A replacement
compression will not be placed into the building until September 2, 2025.

Street Paving:

The 2024 paving project at Maple, Church and Bane Streets has wrapped up. This project and the
products used are not the traditional black top that has been used in the past. The Village elected for a
recycled pavement process and therefore it is never going to be or look like traditional pavement. Its
recycled materials. There were many conversations between the Street Department, OHM and
Benedetti Paving to iron out concerns over the adhesion of the product to the road surfaces.

Future street paving projects should not include recycled paving. The problems with adhesion make this
a substrate that is not suited for streets that have bricks underneath. While the Village was cautioned
by its engineer, the decision was made to pursue this method because it appeared cost effective.

Enbridge Gas:
Enbridge Gas is continuing to work with businesses along Broad Street to get additional easements in
place to coordinate the installation of gas lines into the back of the buildings instead of the front. This
project is expected to begin before year end.

Electric Department:
Peak Shaving:

Despite having to make an emergency repair the department was successful in completing peak shaving
during the last couple of months. Electric demand was at an all-time high during the month of July.
Without the efforts of the electric department, future electricity rates could have been significantly
higher. Electric rates are based on these high consumption events.

Financial Update:

The Village successfully closed its books at the end of July and all accounts were reconciled. I've
attached copies of the fund balances as of 7/31 in Council's update for this evening. The fund balances



are starting to look healthy for the General Fund and for the General Fund Reserve. Best practices
would indicate that there should be a 20% balance in the General Fund Reserve for all monies collected

by the Village each year. While we are not there yet, it is heading in a positive manner. This is due to
the commitment of the Finance Director and Council to be transparent and accountable. In my time here
as Finance Director, no transfers from the General Fund Reserve to the General Fund have been
requested.

Additionally, there is constant communication between the finance office and each department
monitoring the appropriations, the open purchase orders and any remaining plans for capital
improvements. Concurrently, the 2026 appropriations process has started with some communication with
each department on larger capital improvement needs. This communication includes every department,
and each have been respectful of advice and the guidance given by myself and my Assistant. There is a
commitment by each department to work together. I want to thank each and everyone of the
departments for moving the Village in the right direction. This takes a huge commitment.

2021-2022 Audit:

The 2021-2022 Financial Audit is now available on the Auditor of State's website.



C H E C K  L I S T

C O M P R E S S O R
SUCTION.
HEAD
VOLTS:

PSI

PSI
A M P S

ELECTRICAL CONNECTIONS

CONTACTOR TIGHT & CLEAN Y/N
OIL LEVEL & CONDITION
BURN OUT
C O N D E N S E R  C O I L
CLEAN COIL & CHECK FIN COND.

ENTI 'F  LVG
R E F R I G E R A N T

LEAK E  C H A R G E

F A N  A N D  M O T O R

VOLTS A M P S

ELECTRICAL CONNECTIONS
CONTACTS TIGHT & CLEAN

15 FAN PULLEYS (ADJUST BELT)

CHECK, LUBE BEARINGS & MOTOR

CFM.
E V A P O R A T O R  C O I L

CLEAN COIL & CHECK FIN
ENT DB " F |  L V G  D B

ENT WB *F LVG WB

C O N D E N S A T E  A R E A S

INSPECT & CLEAN DRAIN PAN
INSPECT & CLEAN DRAIN
A I R  F I L T E R S

CLEANED -  R E P L A C E D

FILTER SIZE
H E A T I N G  A S S Y .

BURNER & HEAT EXCHANGER

FUEL SUPPLY & PRESSURE

1 PILOT ASSEMBLY

FLAME ADJUSTMENT.

PRIMARY RELAY & FLUE
FAN & LIMIT SWITCH OPER.

BLOWER ASSEMBLY

RV VALVE

STRIP HEAT
E] DEFROST CYCLE

E L E C T R I C A L  C O M P ' T S .
I  R E L A Y S ? CONTACTORS

O V E R L O A D PRESS, SWITCH
T H E R M O S T A T

8  ? ? . I  R E P L A C E .
J  RELOCATE

T R A V E L  T I M E

QUANTITY ITEM OR PART DESCRIPTION

5  T o n  6  S e e r

Ac ins ta l led

P R I C E AMOUNT

101, 700

M a i n t e n a n c e  G I l
A c  u n i t s  c n o  f u r n a c u s

* Includes new Thermostat
new 7/8 l ine Set
on new insta l l

2.300

X Current Ac iS
3 Phase. must
Have electrician

Rox Single Phase

W i r e  R e n .

TOTAL PARTS

WRITE OR CODE AMOUNT
PARTS WARRANTY

A l l  p a r t s  a s  r e c o r d e d  a r e  w a r r a n t e d  a s  p e r
manu fac tu re r  spec i f i ca t ions .
L A B O R  G U A R A N T Y
The  l abo r  cha rge  as  reco rded  he re  re la t i ve  t o  t he

equ ipmen t  se rv i ced  as  no ted ,  i s  gua ran teed  f o r  a R
per iod of  30 days.
We do not, of course, guaranty other parts than those
we supply.  I f  repairs later  become necessary due to
other defective parts, they wil l be charged separately.

REFER MACH: USAGE

TIME
ARRIVED

TIME
DEPARTED

TRAVEL

T I M E

E N V I R O N M E N T
CHRG. TYPE

CODEREFRIG

R E C O V E R E D ?
M I L E A G E YES NO

T O T A L

OTHER CHARGES $
C H E C K L I S T

SYSTEM CHANGED
OUT (OR

OTY. - U REPLACED)?

Q T Y .

M

D I S
MANTLED?

YES N O

ENDING
YES

REFRIGERANT DISPOSAL
N O

RECYCLED? O T Y .

S T A R T -
Y E S N O

3

TOTAL
MILES

RECLAIMED? QTY.
O U R  P E R S O N N E L

R E C O M M E N D :

E
YES N O

/HR. -

R E T U R N E D  T O

T H I S  S Y S T E M ?

D I S P O S A L

Q T Y .
N O

/MI.= NON USEABLE

TRIPTRIP CE S OTY.

OWNER'S INITIALS
ACCEPTED DECLINED

D I S P O S A I

N A M E

PHILLIPS HEATING
&  A I R  C O N D I T I O N I N G  L L C

26 S. CANAL STREET
NEWTON FALLS, OH 44444

(330) 872 - 5310
OH Lic. 11557

C a r r i e r

STREET i t  o f  n e w t o n  f a l l s
6 / d

CITY

Newton Fal ls
MODEL

Z I P

S E R I A L  N U M B E R

C a r r i e r
JOB

LOCATION

Phillips Elite Series

D E S C R I P T I O N  O F  W O R K

O R I G I N A L
COMPLAINT

10 Year Parts

1 Year labor.

TECH

TECH

T E C H N I C I A N
S I G N A T U R E

H R S . @
REGULAR OVERTIME

H R S
/ H R .  =

R E G U L A R

/ H R .  =

H R S . ®
OVERTIME

HRS.
/HR.  = / H R .  =

CERT.  # T O T A L
O T H E R
C H A R G E S

TERMS: DUE UPON COMPLETION SUB-
L HAVE THE AUTHORITY TO ORDER THE ABOVE WORK AND DO SO TOTAL
ORDER AS OUTLINED ABOVE. IT IS AGREED THAT THE SELLER WILL
RETAIN TITLE TO ANY EQUIPMENT OR MATERIAL FURNISHED UNTIL
FINAL & COMPLETE PAYMENT IS MADE, AND IF SETTLEMENT IS NOT
MADE AS AGREED, THE SELLER SHALL HAVE THE RIGHT TO
REMOVE SAME AND THE SELLER WILL BE HELD HARMLESS FOR

T R I P
C H A R G E

A N Y  D A M A G E S  R E S U L T I N G  F R O M  T H E  R E M O V A L  T H E R E O F .
T A X

TOTAL

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE

AMOUNT
DUE

ABOVE ORDERED WORK HAS BEEN COMPLETED AND I ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF MY COPY.
D A T E

4 4 2 0 8

DATE ORDERED

DATE SCHEDULED

PHONE /

W K  O R  C E L L

?  W A R R A N T Y
?  C O N T R A C T

SERVICE CONTRACT
N O R M A L

?  R E S  ?  C O M M .

S E R V I C E

u 2  a n



BEMBA04 2 0 2 5 / 0 8 / 0 4  1 3 : 2 5 : 2 5

S T A R T I N G  A C C O U N T :

F U N D

N O .

F U N D

D E S C R I P T I O N

1 0 0  G E N E R A L  F U N D
1 0 1 G E N E R A L  F U N D  R E S E R V

2 0 1 STREET CMR
2 0 2 S T A T E  H I G H W A Y  I M P R O
2 0 3 P E R M I S S I V E  A U T O

2 0 4 PARK AND RECREATION

2 0 8 DRUG LAW ENFORCEMEN
2 1 3 COMMUNITY SERVICES
2 1 4 S R  C I T I Z E N  V A N

2 1 5 I N D I G E N T  D R I V E R S

2 1 6 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMEN
2 1 7 HOME IMPROVEMENT LO
2 1 8 L A W  L I B R A R Y

2 1 9 ENFORCEMENT AND EDU
2 2 0 S P E C I A L  L E V Y  P O L I C E
2 2 1  I N C O M E  T A X
2 2 2  C O U R T  C O M P U T E R I Z A T I

2 2 3  C O U R T  G E N E R A L  S P E C I
2 2 4 C O U R T  S E C U R I T Y / D I V E
2 2 5  I N D I G E N T  D R I V E R S  A L

2 2 6  P R O B A T I O N  I M P R O V E M E
2 2 7  P R O B A T I O N  I N C E N T I V E
2 2 8  J U S T I C E  R E I N V E S T M E N
2 2 9  D R U G  D I V E R S I O N  H A L O

2 3 0  J U S T I C E  R E I N V E S T M E N
2 3 1  C O V I D - 1 9  F E D  C A R E S
2 3 2  C O U R T  C O V I D - 1 9  T E C H

2 3 3  A R P A  L O C A L  F I S C A L  R
2 3 4  O N E  O H I O  O P I O I D  S E T

4 0 0 CAPITAL  IMPROVEMENT
4 0 2  R O A D  B U I D L I N G  A N D  E

4 0 5 F U T U R E  B U I L D I N G  F U N
4 0 7  C I T Y  H A L L  B R O A D  S T

4 0 8 P A R K  F E N C E  C A P I T A L
4 0 9  M E D L E Y  S E W E R  C A P I T A

4 1 0 A M I  M E T E R I N G  P R O J E C
5 0 1 WATER OPERATING

5 0 2 SEWER OPERATING
5 0 3  E L E C T R I C  O P E R A T I N G
5 0 4  S T O R M W A T E R  O P E R A T I N

5 0 5  W A T E R  O P W C  I S S U E  1
5 0 6  S E W E R  O P W C  I S S U E  1
5 0 7 ELECTRIC  REPLACEMEN

5 0 8  G U A R A N T E E  T R U S T
5 1 0  R E F U S E
5 1 4  U T I L I T Y  O F F I C E

B E G I N N I N G

B A L A N C E

4 9 2 8 3 9 . 5 1

1 5 0 3 8 9 . 1 3
3 3 7 6 6 . 1 2

9 1 3 3 1 . 8 8
1 2 9 1 6 8 . 0 0

2 8 8 0 7 . 8 3
1 2 7 8 7 . 0 8

1 4 3 7 . 8 4
1 1 0 7 . 7 8

1 6 7 5 5 . 3 1
2 5 5 . 6 0

1 1 1 0 7 3 . 5 2

1 9 3 1 . 0 0

3 1 8 4 7 . 2 3
4 2 5 3 9 . 1 7

0 . 0 0

3 8 4 1 3 7 . 8 7
8 6 7 6 9 3 . 2 1

1 1 7 0 . 0 0

1 9 9 1 1 7 . 1 6
0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
4 6 5 4 7 . 8 8
1 2 4 5 5 . 5 6

3 6 4 . 5 2
4 5 6 0 . 7 0

0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

2 7 1 3 . 8 5
6 . 9 0

4 8 0 2 1 3 . 2 5
9 3 4 4 9 8 . 8 0

2 4 4 3 9 4 6 . 6 4
2 5 0 0 9 8 . 9 8

1 9 8 0 2 . 2 1
7 0 0 8 . 8 8

2 2 3 4 0 4 . 1 8

2 3 4 2 5 0 . 1 9
3 1 2 2 4 . 3 3

7 1 7 8 8 . 4 2

CITY OF NEWTON FALLS 5 . 4 . 0 Page: 1

S t a t e m e n t  o f  C a s h  P o s  w / M T D

AS OF: 07/31/2025 YEAR: 2025

[ - - - - - R E C E I P T S - -
M - T - D Y - T - D

1 8 0 9 9 4 . 6 5

2 3 6 9 . 2 1
4 1 7 8 3 . 3 7

2 2 2 6 . 5 1

8 8 7 0 . 9 6
1 7 7 6 . 9 1

5 0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

1 2 5 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

1 2 7 . 8 1
7 3 4 . 0 0

8 9 6 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

1 2 2 1 3 4 . 6 4
4 5 4 3 . 5 0

6 1 7 0 . 5 0
0 . 0 0

6 2 1 . 9 5
0 0

0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

1 9 9 5 . 3 2

5 9 2 3 . 0 3
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0

2 5 2 3 7 5 . 2 9
1 8 2 4 1 8 . 8 9
4 9 8 7 3 6 . 1 3

7 3 4 1 . 6 5

0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
3 9 5 0 . 0 0

3 6 3 2 7 . 2 6

2 2 4 3 4 . 5 2

1 3 3 7 9 6 7 . 8 4
1 4 2 3 3 . 7 0

2 5 4 4 3 2 . 8 4
1 5 7 0 3 . 1 4

6 2 1 7 0 . 4 0
1 0 6 7 5 . 2 6

2 4 1 . 6 0
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
5 2 5 . 0 0

0 . 0 0

9 4 3 . 7 8
5 0 9 5 . 3 0

1 3 4 6 . 0 0
1 4 4 6 3 . 1 7

7 3 3 6 9 3 . 5 6
2 9 2 4 3 . 1 0
4 1 6 7 9 . 8 0

1 5 0 .0 0
6 1 2 0 . 4 3

0 0
0

. 00
0 0 0
0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

6 6 7 3 . 0 8
3 5 5 8 4 . 2 3

0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
1 3 4 6 1 6 8 . 6 1

1 1 5 6 8 9 8 . 9 1
3 5 5 5 4 8 3 . 6 1

4 8 3 6 4 . 5 8
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
1 8 9 9 3 . 7 3

2 4 1 6 7 2 . 4 3

1 8 3 8 3 3 . 2 0

E N D I N G  A C C O U N T :  Z 2 2 Z 2 Z 2 Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z

? - - -  D I S B U R S M E N T S - - - ]

M - T - D Y - T - D

1 4 1 5 3 3 . 5 0
0 . 0 0

5 4 1 7 5 . 8 2

1 5 . 3 7
2 4 2 1 8 . 3 0

3 0 3 . 8 3
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

1 8 0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

1 0 8 9 0 . 0 0
7 3 4 . 0 0

0 . 0 0

1 8 5 4 . 2 9
1 2 2 1 3 4 . 6 4

3 8 1 4 . 7 0
1 1 5 2 3 . 1 5

0 . 0 0
1 6 8 4 . 5 0

0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

1 6 5 0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
2 5 5 5 8 5 . 1 4

1 4 5 4 5 2 . 0 5
2 4 5 6 0 1 . 9 8

1 9 9 0 6 . 3 0
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0

3 6 0 . 0 0
2 9 0 7 . 2 5

3 2 9 4 7 . 4 0
2 3 1 8 8 . 5 8

9 1 9 3 7 4 . 7 4

0 . 0 0
2 8 1 8 3 0 . 6 7

4 5 . 1 6

3 4 9 2 2 . 0 4
6 0 6 0 . 1 9

0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

3 7 6 7 . 5 0
0 . 0 0

2 1 9 6 0 . 0 0
5 0 9 5 . 3 0

0 . 0 0

8 4 7 4 . 3 9
7 3 3 6 9 3 . 5 6

3 6 5 8 3 . 6 9
7 6 6 8 3 . 2 9

0 . 0 0
6 9 1 6 . 9 5

0 . 0 0

0 .0 0
0 . 0 0

0 0
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
1 6 5 0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

1 2 1 7 1 4 2 . 3 6

6 9 9 1 1 3 . 4 7
3 3 2 1 0 2 8 . 8 3

9 7 9 6 3 . 4 3

0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

5 7 6 3 0 . 0 0

1 5 0 8 9 . 0 0
2 4 1 4 1 0 . 8 0

1 7 9 6 0 3 . 3 9

U N E X P E N D E D

B A L A N C E

9 1 1 4 3 2 . 6 1
1 6 4 6 2 2 . 8 3

6 3 6 8 . 2 9
1 0 6 9 8 9 . 8 6

1 5 6 4 1 6 . 3 6

3 3 4 2 2 . 9 0
1 3 0 2 8 . 6 8

1 4 3 7 . 8 4
1 1 0 7 . 7 8

1 3 5 1 2 . 8 1

2 5 5 . 6 0
9 0 0 5 7 . 3 0

1 9 3 1 . 0 0

3 3 1 9 3 . 2 3
4 8 5 2 7 . 9 5

0 . 0 0
3 7 6 7 9 7 . 2 8

8 3 2 6 8 9 . 7 2

1 3 2 0 . 0 0
1 9 8 3 2 0 . 6 4

0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

5 1 5 7 0 . 9 6
4 8 0 3 9 . 7 9

3 6 4 . 5 2
4 5 6 0 . 7 0

0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
2 7 1 3 . 8 5

6 . 9 0
6 0 9 2 3 9 . 5 0

1 3 9 2 2 8 4 . 2 4
2 6 7 8 4 0 1 . 4 2

2 0 0 5 0 0 . 1 3

1 9 8 0 2 . 2 1
7 0 0 8 . 8 8

1 6 5 7 7 4 . 1 8

2 3 8 1 5 4 . 9 2
3 1 4 8 5 . 9 6

7 6 0 1 8 . 2 3

O U T S T A N D I N G E N D I N G

E N C U M B E R A N C E  B A L A N C E

3 5 8 5 4 8 . 3 3

0 . 0 0
6 7 7 7 . 2 4
2 1 9 1 . 6 8

1 3 9 8 4 . 0 6

5 4 0 9 . 9 7
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
2 3 3 2 . 3 0

0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
1 6 6 0 9 . 9 7

2 3 3 9 . 0 5

0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
1 1 1 5 . 9 6

1 3 2 2 2 . 1 2
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
3 2 8 1 9 0 . 8 9

1 8 8 8 0 9 . 9 5
1 9 9 4 8 3 2 . 0 4

3 1 5 8 3 . 4 1

0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
9 3 8 2 . 5 1

1 6 8 0 4 9 . 2 0

5 3 1 7 0 . 8 1

5 5 2 8 8 4 . 2 8
1 6 4 6 2 2 . 8 3

4 0 8 . 9 5 -
1 0 4 7 9 8 . 1 8

1 4 2 4 3 2 . 3 0
2 8 0 1 2 . 9 3

1 3 0 2 8 . 6 8
1 4 3 7 . 8 4

1 1 0 7 . 7 8

1 3 5 1 2 . 8 1
2 5 5 . 6 0

9 0 0 5 7 . 3 0

4 0 1 . 3 0 -
3 3 1 9 3 . 2 3
4 8 5 2 7 . 9 5

0 . 0 0

3 6 0 1 8 7 . 3 1
8 3 0 3 5 0 . 6 7

1 3 2 0 . 0 0
1 9 8 3 2 0 . 6 4

0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
5 0 4 5 5 . 0 0
3 4 8 1 7 . 6 7

3 6 4 . 5 2
4 5 6 0 . 7 0

0 . 0 0

0 . 0 0
2 7 1 3 . 8 5

6 . 9 0
2 8 1 0 4 8 . 6 1

1 2 0 3 4 7 4 . 2 9
6 8 3 5 6 9 . 3 8
1 6 8 9 1 6 . 7 2

1 9 8 0 2 . 2 1
7 0 0 8 . 8 8

1 6 5 7 7 4 . 1 8

2 2 8 7 7 2 . 4 1

1 3 6 5 6 3 . 2 4 -

2 2 8 4 7 . 4 2





Pat r i c ia  Bene t i s

Ward One Councilwoman

Newton Falls Village Police

Traffic Cameras Yes or No

Vote Yes or No on a Police Levy

Hot topics for Newton Falls

I am in total support of our own police department. I have heard many of you in our town say the Sheriff

was doing a wonderful job, and we should just go with the Trumbull County Sheriff. I disagree. As an example, just
a couple of days ago I saw on Facebook, one of our part-time Officers playing basketball at the City Park, with the

neighborhood children. We need more things like this to happen, especially in this day and age. Our youth need to
be exposed to the positive interaction with Law Enforcement, especially with our local police department.
Sometimes, a youngster needs to know that there is someone they can confide in and what better way than a
police officer that he feels he can trust.

When we had the Trumbull County Sherriff Department for police services, their productivity was reactive,
not proactive, especially when looking at traffic enforcement. A couple of days ago, I was at Shop and Save, and a
Deputy was sitting in his patrol vehicle, when a vehicle gunned their motor and came flying down Ridge Road. The

deputy just sat there. I was told the deputy could have pulled the vehicle over. Just in the month of July, Newton
Falls issued 60 traffic citations. That alone shows our local police department is committed to getting the traffic
violations back under control and looking out for our residents and businesses' safety. Of course no-one wants to
get a ticket, but if you speed, you earn a ticket, and you need to pay for it.

I know that some people are against traffic cameras but if you aren't speeding, then you have nothing to
worry about. Do I want a ticket, heavens no, but if I get one it is because I earned it, and I'm going to pay it. I hear
people say that an officer should man the camera, but also that say the officer should be at a place where a crime is
being committed. Are our officers expected to be mind readers, to know who is committing a crime and where at
all times? Our officers can't be everywhere at once or know everything that is going on at all times.

I have heard that we are not getting the best officers. I firmly disagree. Many of our officers hold other law
enforcement positions elsewhere while helping staff our police department. We should be thanking them instead
of disparaging them.

Traffic Cameras are a better alternative to assist the community regain its Newton Falls Police Department

as a full-service and full-time entity. This will allow the individuals responsible for breaking the law and endangering
the safety of our residents to pay their fair share. Rather than moving the burden to the law-abiding citizens and
asking them to pay more in taxes.

Let me be clear; the implementation of traffic cameras WILL NOT replace normal police patrols, or
proactive police activity INCLUDING regular traffic stops, and regular traffic citations issued directly from a law
enforcement officer. Your council is trying to do what's best for the community overall, including spending your tax
dollars carefully. I firmly believe that the majority of you will agree that these traffic cameras and a full-time police
department are what's best for this community at large.

If you didn't go down to the park last night, you missed a fun time. Our Police and Fire Departments did a
great job with the many activities. The Dunk Tank was especially fun to watch. The Police Canopy was made

possible due to National Opiate Settlement and cost the village NOTHING. As a Village we need to take advantage
of social activities such as last night, as they strengthen our bond as a united community.

W a r d  O r c



C I T Y  O F  G I R A R D

TRUMBULL COUNTY, OHIO
S C H E D U L E  O F  F I N D I N G S  A N D  R E S P O N S E S

D E C E M B E R  3 1 ,  2 0 2 2
( C O N T I N U E D )

Finding Number 2022-005 - Significant Deficiency - SOC-1 Reports

Condition/Criteria
Sound accounting practices require public officials to design and operate a system of internal control that
is adequate to provide reasonable assurance over the reliability of financial reporting, effectiveness and
efficiency of operations, compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and safeguarding of assets
against unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition.

The City has outsourced employee health insurance claims and speed camera fines processing to third-party
administrators, which are significant accounting functions. Due to deficiencies in internal controls, the City
has not established procedures to determine whether these service organizations have sufficient controls in
place and are operating effectively to reduce the risk that health insurance claims and speed camera fines
have not been authorized or completely and accurately processed in accordance with the Contract.
Attestation Standard (AT-C 320), Reporting on an Examination of Controls at a Service Organization
Relevant to User Entities' Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, prescribes standards for reporting
on service organizations. An unmodified Type 2 Report on Management's Description of a Service
Organization's System and a Service Auditor's Report on that Description and on the Suitability of the
Design and Operating Effectiveness of Controls in accordance with AT-C320 should provide the City with
reasonable assurance that health insurance claim transactions and speed camera fines processing conform

to the contract.

Failing to ensure adequate controls are in place and operating effectively could result in errors occurring
without detection.

Cause/Effect
The City contracted with Health Plan Administrators (HPA) and WJL Administrative Services (WJL), both
of which acted as outside processing services organizations for the City in that those organizations reviewed
and processed medical bills along with providing a network for pricing. The City did not obtain a SOC-1
report for HPA or WJL and also does not perform a detailed review of medical bills provided by HPA or
WJL.

By not reviewing the SOC-1 reports and controls for HPA and WJL, the City does not have assurance
whether HPA or WIL have proper controls in place and, if there are controls in place, whether they are
effective. In addition, the City not reviewing detailed billings of HPA and WJL could result in undetected

errors for processed claims.

The City contracts with Blue Line Solutions (BLS), which acts as an outside processing service organization
for the City in that BLS bills and collects for traffic camera fines issued by the City. The City did not obtain
a SOC-1 report for BLS and also does not have procedures in place to independently review billings and
collections to ensure they are complete and accurate.

By not reviewing the SOC-1 report and controls for BLS, the City does not have assurance whether BLS
has proper controls in place and, if there are controls in place, whether they are effective. In addition, the
City not reviewing BLS billings and collections could result in undetected errors or omissions.

-  1 0 1  -



C I T Y  O F  G I R A R D

TRUMBULL COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES

DECEMBER 31, 2022
( C O N T I N U E D )

Finding Number 2022-005 - Significant Deficiency - SOC-1 Reports (Continued)

Recommendation
We recommend that the City require a Type 2 SOC-1 report in its contract with any third-party
administrator. We also recommend that the City review all SOC-1 reports timely. The SOC-1 report should
follow the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants' Attestation Standards and be performed by
a firm registered and in good standing with the Accountancy Board of the respective state. If the third-
party administrator refuses to furnish the City with a Type 2 SOC-1 report, the City should contract with a
third-party administrator that will provide this report.

City's Response
The City will review and implement the recommendations.

-  1 0 2  -



TANTON PALA

POLICE

Newton Fa l l s  Po l i ce  Depar tment

Chief of Police - John P. Barco

Police Chief's Report

The Newton Falls Police Department responded to 316 calls for service in the month of July. A
total of 60 citations were issued along with 6 criminal arrests.

Last evening, we had our National Night Out at the park since 2019. I believe it was a success. I
want to thank the Newton Falls Joint Fire District, Trumbull County Children's Services,

Trumbull County Health Department, New Day Recovery, Kiwanis Club, AT&T, Trumbull

County EMA Director John Hickey, the traffic safety booth, and Mahoning Valley Disc Dogs.

A special thank you goes to: All About The Party for their donation of the dunk tank, bounce
house, and slide. It's a Wrap Clothing for making our new event shirts. Affordable Delectables
for donating her time to cook and serve the hot dogs and water.

I would like to thank the police officers who donated their time to make this a successful event.
To the volunteers, Officers Igor, Joe Keough, Tim Podgorny, and Councilman Kevin Rufener for
stepping up to the plate to be dunked. The dunk tank was a huge success. Also, I want to thank
Mrs. Stimpert, Mrs. Benetis, and Law Director Limbian for attending. Our Newton Falls Police

canopy was purchased by the National Opioid Settlement Fund

I would like to clarify some areas of concern. The police department is currently running on is
money that has been budgeted. The money is exactly what would have been paid to the Trumbull
County Sheriffs Office. I am not a politician; I am the Chief of Police for the Village of Newton

Falls. My main concern is to make sure our police department provides service to our residents
and businesses. Speed cameras are a tool to help the existing police budget by rebuilding a
full-time police department. A full-time department will allow the residents and business owners
the benefits of a full-time department. As I stated before, we cannot continue to ask the residents
to pass a levy with higher taxes. A speed camera ticket fine is applied directly to the violator

instead of a tax on all.

I also want to make it clear that speed cameras do not replace the work of a police officer, but

rather act as a supplement to them. Our patrol officers will still be on the road, answering calls

and making traffic stops. Our patrol efforts will not decrease just because we have speed
cameras. They are another tool in our belt.

19 North Canal Street | Newton Falls, Ohio 44444 | Phone: 330.872.5757 | Fax: 330.872.1208



THENTON FALLS Newton Falls Police Department

POLICE Chief of Police - John P. Barco

Police Chief's Report

Funding received from speed cameras can be used by any Village Department. Not only do we
have the potential for more investment in public safety, but the prospect of other departments
receiving part of this funding is very real.

Respectfully,

J o h n  P .  B a r c o

Chief of Police

Newton Falls Police Department

19 North Canal Street | Newton Falls, Ohio 44444 | Phone: 330.872.5757 | Fax: 330.872.1208



VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO 
ORDINANCE NO.: 2025-41 
SPONSORS: Councilpersons Stimpert, Benetis 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES RELATED TO THE TRAFFIC 
CODE AND ESTABLISHING CHAPTER 377 OF THE TRAFFIC CODE REGULATING 

UNDER-SPEED, LOW-SPEED AND UTILITY VEHICLES 

WHEREAS, with the increased popularity of using street-authorized golf carts and 
other low speed utility vehicles within municipalities, the Council is compelled to address the 
issue of under-speed, low-speed, and utility vehicles on the streets of the Village of Newton 
Falls; and  

WHEREAS, the State of Ohio, under R.C. § 4511.214, et seq., permits Ohio 
municipalities to authorize and control the operation of low-speed, under-speed or utility 
vehicles on the streets of its jurisdiction so long as they have been properly inspected, 
permitted, and registered with the Bureau of Motor Vehicles; and 

WHEREAS, Council desires to provide a uniform approach to authorize the use of 
these vehicles within the Village; and 

 WHEREAS, based upon the above, Council desires to establish Chapter 377 of the 
Village Traffic Code as detailed with the attached herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Council of the Village of Newton Falls, State of Ohio, hereby 
ordains: 

SECTION 1.  That Council hereby and herein establishes Chapter 377 of the Village 
Traffic Code relating to under-speed, low-speed, and utility vehicles as of the effective date of 
this Ordinance, and as detailed in the attached version of Chapter 377.    

SECTION 2.  That all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the adoption 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and all deliberations of this 
Council or any of its committees that resulted in such formal action were taken in meetings open 
to the public and/or in compliance with all legal requirements, including Section 121.22 of the 
Ohio Revised Code. 

SECTION 3.  That this Ordinance shall be effective as of the earliest date permitted by 
law. 

PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS _____ DAY OF _______________, 2025 

_____________________________________ 
David Hanson, Mayor 

Attest:  _____________________________________ 
Michael Acomb, Clerk of Council  

Approved as to Legal Form. 
_____________________________________ 
Jeff Limbian, Law Director 



VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO 
ORDINANCE NO.: 2025-41 
EXHIBIT A PAGE 1 OF 2 
 
 
CHAPTER 377 Under-Speed, Low-Speed, and Utility Vehicles 
 
377.01 DEFINITIONS 
For this chapter, the following definitions shall apply unless the context indicates or requires a different 
meaning. 

(a) “LOW-SPEED VEHICLE” means any vehicle as defined by R.C. § 4501.01(WW). 
(b) “UNDER-SPEED VEHICLE” means any vehicle defined under R.C. § 4501.01 (XX). 
(c) “UTILITY VEHICLE” means any vehicle defined under R.C. § 4501.01 (VV) 
(d) “REGULATED VEHICLE” means any under-speed, low-speed or utility vehicle regulated 

under this Chapter. 
 
377.02 REGULATED VEHICLES PERMITTED ON VILLAGE STREETS  
Subject to the requirements of this chapter,  

(a) No regulated vehicle shall be permitted to travel on any city street, or a portion of a city street, 
where the posted speed limit is greater than 35 miles per hour.  

(b) Such regulated vehicles shall be permitted to cross intersections of streets with higher 
speeds so long as the regulated vehicle remains on such street or the continuing intersection 
of such street that has a speed limit with the permissible regulated vehicle speed limit. 

(c) No regulated vehicle may be operated off the street, particularly on any sidewalk or bike path, 
within the City except a path located solely within and servicing private property. 

 
377.03 COMPLIANCE WITH TRAFFIC LAWS 
All regulated vehicles must be operated on Village streets in accordance with all applicable state 
and local traffic laws, including but not limited to the following: 

(a) Anyone who operates a vehicle on Village streets must have a valid driver's license. If 
the owner of the multi-use vehicle is a business, the business must require that all persons 
operating its multi-use vehicles have a valid driver's license; 

   (b)   A vehicle must have the required license plates. 
   (c)   A vehicle must have at least minimum liability insurance coverage as required by the State 

of Ohio. 
 

377.04 VEHICLE INSPECTION 
No person shall operate a regulated vehicle, as defined herein, on the streets within the City unless 
it has been inspected and approved by the Chief of Police, or the designee of the Chief of Police, 
for compliance with the applicable safety/equipment requirements of the State of Ohio relative to 
motor vehicles. The inspection fee shall be twenty-five dollars ($25.00). The Newton Falls Police 
Department shall conduct the inspection of such vehicle at the residence of the owner requesting 
registration of the regulated vehicle. 

(a) At the time of the inspection, the owner of the regulated vehicle must present all the following: 
1. Proof of ownership, including a title in accordance with R.C. Chapter 4505 and registration 

in accordance with R.C. Chapter 4503 (Out-of-state regulated vehicles are not permitted 
on Village streets); 

2. Evidence of compliance with Section 377.03; 
3. A regulated vehicle that complies with Section 377.05 (If the regulated vehicle is an under-

speed vehicle, the owner/operator also must provide proof of the gross vehicle weight. If 
the multi-use vehicle is a mini truck, the owner/operator must provide proof of the unladen 
weight); and  

4. Payment for the inspection fee. (Check payable to Village of Newton Falls) 
 
377.05 REQUIRED EQUIPMENT 
A regulated vehicle, at a minimum, must have all the following: 



VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO 
ORDINANCE NO.: 2025-41 
EXHIBIT A PAGE 2 OF 2 
 
 

(a) Brake lights (two lights); 
(b) Headlights (two lights); 
(c) Taillights (two lights); 
(d) Turn signals (two front, two rear); 
(e) A horn; 
(f) A rearview mirror;  
(g) A windshield; 
(h) Brakes and a brake system; 
(i) A steering mechanism;  
(j) Appropriate tires that are free of major bumps, bulges, breaks, or any other unsafe conditions; 
(k) Seat belts sufficient for the maximum occupancy of the vehicle; and 

 
377.06 STICKER AND CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE  
If the regulated vehicle is determined by the Newton Falls Police Department to be in compliance 
with Section 377.03 and 377.04, the Chief of Police shall issue the owner a Certificate of Compliance 
entitling the owner, or an authorized operator, to operate the regulated vehicle according to this 
Chapter. 

(a) The Chief of Police shall keep a copy of each Certificate issued pursuant to this chapter. 
(b) The owner or operator of a regulated vehicle shall keep a copy of any Certificate issued, 

pursuant to this section, inside the regulated vehicle to which it pertains, at all times, as such 
vehicle is being used within the streets of the City.  

(c) The Chief of Police shall issue a sticker or similar device to the owner of each regulated 
vehicle upon successful inspection and certification. The sticker shall signify compliance with 
this chapter and section.  

(d) The owner or operator of such regulated vehicle shall display the sticker, at all times, in a 
conspicuous place on the rear of the regulated vehicle. 

 
377.07 UNSECURED LOADS. 
   Objects, such as luggage, freight, coolers, wheelchairs, car seats, strollers and other similar 
objects, shall not be transported on a low-speed vehicle or under-speed vehicle unless the objects 
are properly secured within a flat bed or cargo area with the tailgate closed and/or with cords, straps, 
ties, netting or other appropriate restraints to secure the objects and prevent them from falling onto 
the roadway. 
 
377.08 PENALTY. 
Whoever violates this Chapter shall be guilty of a minor misdemeanor upon a first offense. Upon a 
second offense within one year after the first offense, the violator of this Chapter shall be guilty of a 
misdemeanor of the Fourth Degree. Each subsequent offense within one year after the first offense 
and second offense, the violator shall be guilty of a misdemeanor of the Third Degree. Each day of 
noncompliance shall constitute a separate violation. Individuals, corporations, and companies so 
named on the title of said vehicle shall be responsible for all safety equipment and shall also be 
responsible for all penalties set forth in this section. Compliance with this section shall be in addition 
to, rather than in lieu of, any applicable provisions of state law related to the operation of motor 
vehicles.

 



 

 
 

VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO 
ORDINANCE NO.: 2025-43 
SPONSOR: Councilpersons Axiotis, Stimpert 

 
AN ORDINANCE RESOLVING ALL POTENTIAL LEGAL CLAIMS AGAINST THE 
VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO BY A. JOSEPH FRITZ PURSUANT TO THE 
EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT WHICH INCLUDED AN OUTSTANDING SEVERANCE 

PROVISION 
 

 WHEREAS, Village Council recognizes that the former Law Director, A. Joseph Fritz 
was wrongfully terminated by the Village of Newton Falls, Ohio after improper allegations 
were made about him by former Village officials; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Village Council recognizes that the former Law Director, A. Joseph Fritz 
has a justiciable claim for severance pay under the terms of his employment contract; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Village Council acknowledges that there is a liability issue that could 
result in a significant cost to the Village; and 
 

WHEREAS, Village Council further acknowledges that the current Law Director has 
engaged in settlement negotiations with A. Joseph Fritz and all claims for damages arising 
out of this matter can be resolved for $25,000.00 as a complete and final settlement with A. 
Joseph Fritz.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Council of the Village of Newton Falls, State of Ohio, 

hereby ordains: 
 
SECTION 1.  That to settle all claims against the Village of Newton Falls, the Council 

hereby approves the payment of $25,000.00 to A. Joseph Fritz as complete and final 
settlement with A. Joseph Fritz pursuant to the attached agreement, Exhibit “A”.  

 
  SECTION 2.  That all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the 
adoption of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and all 
deliberations of this Council or any of its committees that resulted in such formal action 
were taken in meetings open to the public and/or in compliance with all legal requirements, 
including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 
 SECTION 3.  That this Ordinance shall be effective as of the earliest date permitted 
by law. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

 
 
ORDINANCE NO.: 2025-43 
PAGE TWO 
 

 
PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS _____ DAY OF _______________, 2025. 

 
 
      ____________________________________ 

David Hanson, Mayor 
 
 
Attest:      _____________________________________  

Michael Acomb, Clerk of Council  
 
Approved as to Legal Form. 

      _____________________________________ 
      Jeff Limbian, Law Director 
  

 



Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND MUTUAL RELEASE 
 

 
This Settlement Agreement and Mutual Release (“Settlement Agreement”) is made and 

entered into by and between the Village of Newton Falls, Ohio, a municipal corporation 
(“Village”) and A. Joseph Fritz, an individual and the former Law Director of the Village. The 
effective date of this Settlement Agreement shall be the date of the vote on which it is approved 
by the Council of the Village of Newton Falls (“Council”). 

 
In consideration of the foregoing premises and the following mutual promises and other 

provisions and agreements set forth below, the sufficiency and receipt of which are 
acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound, the Parties agree as follows: 

 
(1).  Settlement Payment. In consideration of the release and other promises made in 

this settlement agreement, the Village shall make single lump-sum payments to A. Joseph Fritz 
totaling the amount of $25,000.00. 

 
(2). Mutual Releases. A. Joseph Fritz, and his heirs, administrators, executors, spouse, 

successors, estate, representatives and assigns, and all other persons or entities claiming through 
him, do release and forever discharge Village and its Council, departments, officers, public 
officials, employees, creditors, agents, attorneys, representatives, insurers, administrators, 
employee benefit plans and/or any fiduciaries thereof, and re-insurers thereof (collectively, the 
“Village Releasees”) of and from all rights, claims, actions and causes of action, demands, 
controversies, suits, charges, complaints, promises, obligations, torts, violations of public policy, 
liabilities, damages, debts, expenses, costs, interest (including all pre-settlement, pre-judgment, 
post-settlement, or post-judgment interest), reimbursements, claims for attorneys’ fees (whether 
contractual or under statutory or common law), whether at law or in equity, with respect to any 
and all conduct, matters, transactions, or occurrences. 
 

a. Release by Village. T he Village, for itself and its Council, departments, 
officers, public officials, employees, creditors, agents, attorneys, representatives, insurers, 
administrators, employee benefit plans and/or any fiduciaries thereof, and re-insurers thereof 
(collectively, the “Village Releasors”), does release and forever discharge A. Joseph Fritz from all 
rights, claims, actions and causes of action, demands, controversies, suits, charges, complaints, 
promises, obligations, torts, violations of public policy, liabilities, damages, debts, expenses, 
costs, interest (including all pre-settlement, pre-judgment, post-settlement, or post-judgment 
interest), reimbursements, claims for attorneys’ fees (whether contractual or under statutory or 
common law), whether at law or in equity, with respect to any and all conduct, matters, 
transactions, or occurrences. 

 
(3).  Covenant Not to Sue. The Parties agree not to sue or assert, any type of formal or 

informal legal claim, demand, or legal proceeding against either party for this or any other matter 
included within the scope of releases in this Settlement Agreement.  
 

(4). No Admission of Liability. The Parties do not admit any liability in connection with 
any claim. It is understood and agreed that this Settlement Agreement does not constitute any 
admission of liability regarding the same by any Party.  
 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
(5). Representations and Warranties. The Parties represent and warrant that it has read 

this settlement agreement in its entirety, understands and acknowledges the significance and 
consequences of the specific intention to release the rights, claims, and causes of action, as 
expressed herein, acknowledges that it has been advised regarding the terms of this Settlement 
Agreement by legal counsel or has had the opportunity to do so, acknowledges that this Settlement 
Agreement was negotiated between the Parties, acknowledges that it is knowingly and voluntarily 
entering into this Settlement Agreement without the influence of coercion or duress, acknowledges 
that this Settlement Agreement shall not be subject to any claim of mistake of fact or duress. 
 
  (6).  Authority. By executing this Settlement Agreement, the Parties represent and 
warrant that each individual signatory has capacity and authority to execute this Settlement 
Agreement and to bind their principal entity and respective affiliates in the capacity set forth 
below. 
 

(7). Choice of Law. This Settlement Agreement shall be construed under, enforced 
under, and governed by the laws of the State of Ohio. 
 

(8). Subsequent Modifications. The terms of this Settlement Agreement may only be 
altered or amended upon the signed written agreement of the Parties. 
 
             (9).  Entire Agreement. This Settlement Agreement sets forth all the terms and conditions 
agreed to by the Parties regarding the subject matter hereof. The Parties agree that the execution 
of this Settlement Agreement has not been induced by any representations or promises not 
expressed herein.  
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed and delivered this Settlement 
Agreement on the dates set forth below. 

     On behalf of the Village of Newton Falls 
      
 

_________________________________ 
Mayor David Hanson 

      
     Date_____________________________ 
    

 
_____________________________ 

     A. Joseph Fritz 
      
     Date_____________________________ 
 
      
Approved as to form:  _________________________________ 
 
     J. Jeffrey Limbian, Law Director, Newton Falls 
 
     Date_____________________________ 


	1regular meeting AGENDA 08-20-25 DRAFT
	1regular meeting MINUTES 08-06-25 DRAFT-
	For mins 8-6-25
	2025-41 Ord Establishing Section 377 Traffic Code (2)
	VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO
	ORDINANCE NO.: 2025-41
	SPONSOR: Councilpersons Stimpert, ---
	_____________________________________
	David Hanson, Mayor
	Approved as to Legal Form.
	_____________________________________

	2025-43 Exh Fritz settlement
	SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND MUTUAL RELEASE

	2025-41Exh Establishing Section 377 Traffic Code (2)
	2025-43 Ord Fritz settlement
	VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO
	ORDINANCE NO.: 2025-43
	SPONSOR: Councilpersons
	USECTION 1.U  That to settle all claims against the Village of Newton Falls, the Council hereby approves the payment of $25,000.00 to A. Joseph Fritz as complete and final settlement with A. Joseph Fritz pursuant to the attached agreement, Exhibit “A”.
	USECTION 2.U  That all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the adoption of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and all deliberations of this Council or any of its committees that resulted in such forma...
	ORDINANCE NO.: 2025-43
	PAGE TWO
	____________________________________
	David Hanson, Mayor
	Approved as to Legal Form.
	_____________________________________


